
SCRUTINY : LEARNING AND LAESCYP 
MEETING

4.00 pm MONDAY, 16TH APRIL, 2018

COUNCIL CHAMBER

Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded. 
 

This recording will not be broadcast on the Authority’s internet as it will only be used for 
training purposes by the Democratic Services Department.

The Public Seating areas will be in view of the Camera and, by entering the Chamber and 
using the Public Seating Area, Members of the Public are consenting to being filmed and to 

the possible use of those images and sound recordings as outlined above.  

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can 
be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

OPEN SESSION

3. Merthyr Secondary School Key Stage 4 
Performance 
To consider the attached report. 5 - 14

4. Estyn Inspection Areas 
To consider the attached report 15 - 24

5. Best Start To Life - Children and Young People 
are Equipped With The Skills They Need To Be 
Successful Learners and Confident Individuals 
To consider the attached report 25 - 34

6. Best Start To Life - Children Get The Best Start To 
Life 
To consider the attached report 35 - 44

CLOSED SESSION

Exempt

In order for the following to be considered in private, it is suggested that the 
public be excluded from the Meeting on the grounds that it involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 15 under Part 4 of 
Schedule 12A Section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972.



7. Additional Learning Needs (ALN) - Review of 
Learning Resources Bases Across the Authority 
To consider the attached report 45 - 48

RE-OPENED SESSION

8. Developing a Work Programme for 2018/19 
To consider the attached report 49 - 68

9. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions 

10. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting 
To receive an update from the Chair

11. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillors:  H R Jones (Chair)
                     C Davies (Vice-Chair)

Councillors: D Chaplin, L Davies, S Jago, D Sammon 
and S Thomas

Co-optees: C Brown, M Harris, R Lazell, M Lewis, 
A Rees, A Roberts and R Crowley

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Central South Consortium.  MERTHYR TYDFIL SCRUTINY MEETING

1 | P a g e

Date written: 23rd January 2018

Report authors:  Joe Colsey and Mike Glavin

Date of meeting where the report is being considered:  19th February 2018

Appendices attached:  

Issue:  Merthyr Secondary School Key Stage 4 performance

Summary

Significant changes for GSCEs have taken place.  These make comparison with previous 
performance difficult.  Nevertheless outcomes at Key Stage 4 are lower across the region 
and particularly low in Merthyr schools.

Merthyr secondary schools have not accessed all the support available to them.

Arrangements are in place for this academic year to support schools in improving Key Stage 
4 outcomes this summer.

Recommendation

1. Members note the Key Stage 4 performance 
2. Members note the support available and the engagement of schools with that support.
3. Members note the arrangements in place to support Merthyr schools improve pupil Key 

Stage 4 outcomes this academic year.

Background 

4. There were a number of changes that schools experienced over the past two years, 
notably the changes to the curricula, GCSE specifications and performance measures 
which contributed to the changes in pupil outcomes at the end of key stage 4.

These changes included:
 New specifications for GCSE English language and Welsh language with a greater 

emphasis on literacy.

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Central South Consortium.  MERTHYR TYDFIL SCRUTINY MEETING

2 | P a g e

 A new specification for GCSE mathematics along with the introduction of GCSE 
mathematics-numeracy, both with a greater emphasis on numerical reasoning.

 A cap of 40% was introduced to the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 2 inclusive 
measures for vocational/non GCSE qualifications.

 English literature and Welsh literature does not count towards the literacy 
component for performance measures.

 The introduction of the capped points score measure, looking at nine 
qualifications including two areas of science.

Page 6



Central South Consortium.  MERTHYR TYDFIL SCRUTINY MEETING

3 | P a g e

Additional factors included:

 In-cohort changes to allow for entry examination series. Originally mathematics 
and mathematics-numeracy could only be sat at the end of year 11 for the 2015-
17 cohort. In September 2016, this was changed to allow all pupils to be entered 
for the November 2016 series. This resulted in the highest number and 
proportion of entries seen in Wales for the November series.

 The 40% cap in threshold measures, along with the upcoming introduction of 
performance measure requirements for science qualifications to be GCSEs (from 
2018) resulted in a widening variance in terms of school entry patterns across 
vocational (BTEC or IVQ) and GCSE. In some instances, a greater proportion of 
pupils have been entered for vocational science than previously. In others, 
schools can be seen to start to move away from vocational and adopt increased 
GCSE qualifications.

 Non-availability of examination series for entry. The first sitting of the English 
language and Welsh language GCSEs was only available during the summer term 
2017; this resulted in the highest number and proportion of year 10 entries for 
the summer series.

 Examination board information. The decision not to publish grade descriptors for 
all new qualifications resulted in a general lack of confidence in teachers making 
assessments. Target setting, in year tracking and improvement planning was 
ultimately very challenging for schools. 

5. The support provided to schools across the region to manage the changes included: 

 Subject leader network meetings were facilitated termly for all secondary schools 
in the region. Attendance was consistently above 80% for each session and often 
over 90%. These meetings had common foci across all four subjects and included: 
curriculum and specification familiarisation; short, medium and long term 
planning; entry pathways; PISA/new content areas; and, effective teaching 
approaches for new content. All network meetings were used as a consultation 
forum to support the determination of subject leader and department needs 
across the region. 

 Three curriculum planning workshops were facilitated to support school leaders 
in developing their awareness of the scale of subject level reforms, taking a wider 
school response and enable school to school working. Presentations with the 
same focus were delivered at all local authority level headteacher meetings. 

 A summary of performance measures and qualification information was 
developed and updated to include changes. 

 Support for schools to obtain qualification and policy information and liaison 
with key stakeholders to ensure that information was accurate and specific to 
each school’s need

 In addition to curriculum hub provision, nearly 2000 students and 60 staff from 
50 secondary schools rated the Count On / Write On/ Bwrw Mlaen revision 
programmes, for C/D borderline and A/A* grades, as highly beneficial in 
preparing for GCSE examinations.

Page 7



Central South Consortium.  MERTHYR TYDFIL SCRUTINY MEETING

4 | P a g e

 Over 40 mathematics and 35 English ambassadors have been deployed from 
Cardiff University to support targeted learners in nearly 25% of secondary 
schools, adding an additional 850 hours of support across the region.  Many of 
the targeted pupils expressed an increase in their mathematical confidence.  

 Further provision was put in place to support the implementation of the 
reformed GCSEs in response to feedback from a secondary Headteacher 
consultation workshop. Nearly all teachers rated the workshops as good or 
better in sharing expertise to prepare their learners for the summer series (93 
teachers, 23 school for English; 14 teachers, 14 schools for mathematics).

 Funding for schools to work as part of a School Improvement Group (SIG) has 
enabled small groups of collaborative working focusing on the specification 
changes. 

 Action research for around a half of schools in the region has been funded to 
support them in developing their teaching practices in English, Welsh, 
mathematics and science.

 More intensive work with schools in a red or amber support category, focusing 
on leadership and the quality of teaching. 

6. Further to this the Qualified for Life project, funded separately by Welsh Government 
ran from 2014 to 2016. The funding was used to centrally employ 2 mathematics 
advisers, 2 English advisers, 1 Welsh adviser and 1 science adviser. Through a 
multiplicative cascade model, the following aims were set:

 To build capacity in schools to respond to demands of PISA, new GCSE 
qualifications and build excellence;

 To identify new skills required by teachers and learners, and facilitate good 
practice;

• To communicate clearly with teachers and other stakeholders regarding the 
project.

Support English Welsh Mathematics Science
Number of days in-
school support 

At least 2 100%
At least 4   97%
More than 4 82%

2 days – 100% At least 2 100%
At least 4   94%
More than 4 83%

At least 1 – 93%

Number of teachers 
participating in 
additional support 
activity

229 39 386 115

Number of schools 
engaged with QFL 
support

58 (100%) 9 (100%) 58 (100%) 55 (95%)

Provision for special 
schools and PRUs

Y N Y Y

Collaboration for 
development of 
scheme of learning

Y Y Y Y

Page 8



Central South Consortium.  MERTHYR TYDFIL SCRUTINY MEETING

5 | P a g e

7. Additional provision for Key Stage 4 in the core subjects of English, mathematics and 
science for Merthyr schools included: 

English at Key Stage 4:
 Nine GCSE workshops were provided from February to May 2017 with the 

aim of targeting specific areas within the GSCE English curriculum. Of these 
sessions, two were attended by Pen y Dre High School.

 Eight enquiry based English/literacy programmes were delivered during 
2016/17 covering: improving standards of extended writing across the 
curriculum, improving standards of oracy, improving boys’ writing, excellent 
A-level teaching, creating a reading culture, assessing tracking and reporting 
in the LNF, improving outcomes for ESFM learners and improving outcomes 
for MAT learners. Cyfarthfa High School attended one of the programmes, 
Improving Boys’ writing & Assessing, tracking and reporting in the LNF.

 In-School support was offered to Pen Y Dre, Afon Taf and Cyfarthfa High. It 
was decided that Pen Y Dre would be supported by the School Challenge 
Cymru Adviser. Cyfarthfa was the only school that accepted the offer of 
support. 

 Three head of department meetings took place over the academic year. 
Three schools attended all three meetings and one school attended two out 
of the three meetings.

Mathematics at Key Stage 4
 A series of GCSE workshops were provided to target key areas of 

mathematics, mathematics numeracy and provision for more able and talent 
learners in response to the November 2016 series. Cyfarthfa High delivered 
one session and attended one session.

 Eight enquiry based mathematics programmes took place in 2016/17, 
covering; improving numeracy across the curriculum, mathematics teaching 
(KS3) for non-specialist teachers, teaching Key Stage 5 mathematics and 
successfully leading a mathematics department. Cyfarthfa High delivered one 
programme; Afon Taf attended one programme.

 Afon Taf received 25 days in-school support focussing on leadership and in 
class intervention for pupils in Year 10 and Year 11. Cyfarthfa High received 
four days in school support, focusing on hub programme provision. Support 
for Pen Y Dre was provided by the Local Authority Lead for the Secondary 
Sector. 

 Three head of department meetings tool place over the academic year. Three 
schools attended all three meetings and one school attended one out of the 
three meetings.

Page 9



Central South Consortium.  MERTHYR TYDFIL SCRUTINY MEETING

6 | P a g e

Science at Key Stage 4
 Four enquiry based science programmes took place in 2016/17, covering; 

moving from good to excellent teaching, running a successful science 
department and NQT networking. These were not attended by any of the 
Merthyr schools.

 Afon Taf received one day support focusing on BTEC to GCSE transition. 
Bishop Hedley received one day support in relation to preparation for the 
new science curriculum, teaching hours and forward planning. Cyfarthfa 
requested a departmental review, however the notification and preparation 
for Estyn prevented this taking place. Support was provided for Pen Y Dre by 
the Local Authority Lead for the Secondary Sector.

 Three Head of department meetings tool place over the academic year. Two 
schools attended one meeting, one school attended all three meetings and 
one school did not engage.

8. The outcomes for the region were:

Performance 
Indicator

2014 2015 2016 2017 Change
16-17

2017
Wales

Mathematics 60.2% 63.6% 66.5% 62.4%* -4.1pp 62.5%
English 65.2% 70.2% 71.1% 62.4%* -8.7pp 63.6%*

Welsh 75.5% 76.7% 77.5% 79.3% +1.5pp 73.2%

Science 83.4% 85.5% 85.9% 80.3% -5.7pp 75.6%

Level 2+ 54.1% 58.5% 60.9% 54.4%* -6.5pp 54.6%

Page 10



Central South Consortium.  MERTHYR TYDFIL SCRUTINY MEETING

7 | P a g e

9. Modelled results show what the results would have been without the 40% cap and 
without removing English Literature from the performance measures

2016 2017 
(published)

2017 
(modelled)

Difference between published 
and modelled performance

Level 2 Threshold 87.1% 67.5% 75.1% 7.5% points
Level 2 Threshold 
inc EWM

60.9% 54.4% 57.0% 2.5% points

English L2 71.1% 62.4% 68.0% 5.6% points
Cymraeg L2 77.5% 79.1% 79.1% No difference

 The difference between the published and modelled outcomes indicates that 
outcomes are still lower than they were last year i.e. at headline level neither the 
40% cap not the removal of Eng Lit from the performance measure alone can 
account for the fall in outcomes.

 At school level significant drop in outcomes are evident for many schools.  The 
drops are smaller for L2+

 The changes seem to have impacted more on eFSM pupils, particularly at L2. For 
the Level 2 Threshold, the difference between the modelled performance of 
eFSM pupils against published performance is 11.6 pp, which is significantly 
higher than the difference seen for nFSM pupils (difference of 6.7pp).

 Whilst the gap in performance has narrowed when using the modelled 
performance for 2017 data (against the published data), the trend for the gap 
between eFSM and nFSM pupils, has widened for L2+, L2 and L2 English in the 
most recent year.

10. For Merthyr, the KS4 performance has been presented in earlier reports to scrutiny.  The 
following tables provide a summary:

Indicator MTCBC CSC Wales Diff. from 
CSC

Diff. from 
Wales

L1 95.0 94.3 94.4 0.7 0.6
L2 58.8 67.6 67.0 -8.8 -8.2
L2+ 42.4 54.5 54.6 -12.1 -12.2
Capped 9 326.8 356.1 350.9 -29.3 -24.0

Page 11



Central South Consortium.  MERTHYR TYDFIL SCRUTINY MEETING

8 | P a g e

11. At an individual schools basis the results were:

School L1 L2 L2+ Capped 9

Afon Taf High School 97.4 52.2 41.7 337.0

Bishop Hedley High School 100.0 72.5 48.4 366.3

Cyfarthfa High School 100.0 65.5 50.2 344.7

Pen-y-Dre High School 100.0 58.1 32.6 323.4

MTCBC 95.0 58.8 42.4 326.8

CSC 94.3 67.6 54.5 356.1

Wales 94.4 67.0 54.6 350.9

12. To support schools to raise pupils outcomes this academic year, the following provision 
has been made:

 A challenge adviser has been appointed to work with the four Merthyr secondary 
schools.  The person appointed has recently been a successful Headteacher.

 An Accelerated Progress Lead has been deployed to work with Pen y Dre (10 
days) and Afon Taf (25 days), additional support has been provided to Cyfarthfa 
High (10 days). 

 Key Stage 4 English:-
 To date, three schools are in receipt of in-school support for 2017-2018.
 Four enquiry based English/literacy programmes are taking place during 

2017/18, covering: improving standards in GCSE English Language, boys 
breaking boundaries - closing the gender gap, excellent A-level teaching, 
and Strategies to Support Vulnerable Learners Through Literacy. To date 
only one school has engaged with a programme. 

 One head of department meeting has taken place this academic year, this 
was attended by two of the four schools

 Key Stage 4 Mathematics:-
 To date, one school is in receipt of support for 2017-18 and support has 

been planned for a further one school.
 Six enquiry based mathematics programmes are taking place during 

2017/18. To date one school has engaged with two of the programmes.
 One head of department meeting has taken place this academic year, this 

was attended by all four of the secondary schools.

Page 12



Central South Consortium.  MERTHYR TYDFIL SCRUTINY MEETING

9 | P a g e

 Key Stage 4 Science:-
 To date, support has been planned for one school for 2017-18.
 Two head of department meetings have taken place this academic year, 

one school attended both sessions, one school attended one session and 
two schools did not attend either session.

13. To assist schools better understand the changes to GSCE, marked scripts have been 
collected and shared electronically with schools providing teachers with examples of the 
full range of grades.  In addition item level information has been provided so that 
schools can see areas of strengths and weakness in the summer performance.

14. The consortium is exploring the possibility of providing a regional ‘mock exam’ to help 
schools overcome the issues around early entry.

15. The early entry results from the end of the autumn term as re shown in the following 
table;

School Mathematics English Level 2+
Afon Taf High 40% 42% 31%
Bishop Hedley 
High

70% 65% 60%

Cyfarthfa High 58% N/A
Pen Y Dre High 44% 50% 37%

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Local government Education Services – Estyn 
Inspection Areas – Overview
1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 The local authority has a planned work programme for the Self-Evaluation Report 
(SER) in order to build up a profile of judgements, which will be used to highlight any 
areas for improvement as well as come to an overall view on standards and 
performance.

1.2 The purpose of this report is to provide the current overall judgements for the 
inspection areas and to show how the Learning Department is seeking to address 
areas for improvement. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 This report is discussed and noted.

2.2 To consider if there are specific areas that members wish to scrutinise in more detail 
during the next cycle of meetings.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 Self-evaluation is the essential step in a cyclical process of bringing about change 
and improvement.  The steps in the process are:
 Monitoring and evaluating improvement
 Planning for improvement
 Undertaking improvement work

Date Written 3rd April 2018
Report Author Sue Walker
Service Area Learning
Committee Date 16th April 2018

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



3.2 The local authority’s SER for Local Government Education Services (LGES) is being 
reviewed and updated to ensure that the judgements and actions will lead to 
improved outcomes for all learners.  At the heart of self-evaluation are three 
questions: 
 How well are we doing? 
 How do we know? 
 How can we improve things further? 

3.3 ESTYN have reviewed their framework for the inspection of local authorities which is 
currently being piloted during the current academic year.  The local authority has a 
planned work programme in order to build up a profile of judgements, which will be 
used to highlight any areas for improvement as well as come to an overall view on 
standards and performance.  The information collected will lead into the local 
authority’s delivery plans for improving the quality of provision.  Reports on all the 
areas of the SER have been presented over the past academic year and will 
continue to be presented as and when Councillors request them.

4.0 WHERE WE WERE 

4.1 It is difficult to make direct comparisons to previous self-evaluation documents as the 
areas being covered have changed.  However, Appendix 1 shares previous 
judgements and compares them to where we are now and where we want to be.

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW 

5.1 Using Estyn terminology, the overall judgement on performance for the department 
is currently - Adequate and needs improvement  - which means that strengths 
outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects require improvement.  Appendix 2 
outlines the key reasons behind judgements made by the Learning Department. 
These judgements have been challenged as part of the internal challenge processes 
within the authority.

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE 

6.1 The local authority’s ambition is to be ranked in the top 10 performing local 
authorities by 2020 and is making good progress towards achieving this target.  
Effective support for vulnerable learners can provide a clear, demonstrable and 
beneficial effect on all learners

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT 

7.1 Appendix 2 outlines in detail the areas for improvement.  These will form part of the 
business plans for each section of the department during the next year.

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES

8.1 The Learning Department’s overall key area within Wellbeing is Best Start to Life 
(children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with the skills 
they need to be successful and confident individuals).

Page 16



8.2 The Learning Department held a focussed session on self-evaluation activities 
during the Spring Term.  As part of that session, consideration was taken of how the 
wellbeing objectives feed into the work of the department.

8.3 Notwithstanding the Best Start to Life objective, activities undertaken by the 
department also feed into Working Life – there are links to cultural services and 
libraries as well as employability, child-care sufficiency and opportunities for pre-
schools within the social enterprise element. 

8.4 The work of the Learning Department also links closely to Living Well – the 
Educational Psychology Service are supporting the roll-out of activities to support the 
tackling of adverse childhood experiences (ACES) and developing community 
resilience; there are links to increasing levels of physical activity and supporting 
emotional well-being through improved mental health.  

8.5 The key priorities as outlined in the Focus on the Future document Best Start to Life 
are:-

Service Area 
Priority

This priority will be 
delivered in part 

through

To meet these delivery activities the 
following wellbeing projects will be 

undertaken
Achieving 
excellence in 
schools.

This will be 
achieved by 
improving :-

 Outcomes
 Pedagogy
 Governance

 The 21st Century 
programme

 Improving provision 
for pupils with 
Additional Learning 
Needs

 Improving the 
provision for learners 
educated other than 
at school (EOTAS)

 Continuing to develop 
the role of Pupil Voice 
at all levels

 Improving resilience of all learners – each 
area within the department will seek to 
undertake activities that improve the 
reslisnec of children and young people 
thus enabling them to learn more 
effectively

 Improving outcomes for Children looked 
after – a continuation of the project from 
2017/18 which will develop robust 
strategies for supporting Merthyr’s 
Children looked after

 SHEP (School Holiday Enrichment 
Programme) – a Welsh Government 
funded programme – supporting learners 
this year on the Gurnos Estate – the 
council, is looking to develop the 
programme wider in 2018/9

SUE WALKER
CHIEF OFFICER (LEARNING)

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING 

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Guidance for the 
Inspection of Local 

Government Education 
Services 

September 2017

Guidance handbook 
for the inspection of LGES 2018.pdf

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

Page 17



Appendix 1

SELF EVALUATION

SERVICE:  Learning September 2017 to June 2018 – based on 2017 outcomes

Judgement descriptors
 Excellent – Very strong, sustained performance and practice
 Good – Strong features, although minor aspects may require improvement
 Adequate and needs improvement – Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects 

require improvement
 Unsatisfactory and needs urgent improvement – Important weaknesses outweigh strengths

OVERALL JUDGEMENT:  ADEQUATE

Summary Position Statement November 2017
Changes made in line with new Estyn Framework for the inspection of local government 
education services

KEY QUESTION JUDGEMENT
November 2015

JUDGEMENT
June
 2017

JUDGEMENT
April 2018 

TARGET 
July 2019

1. Outcomes Adequate Adequate Adequate Good

2. Quality of  Education Services
(formerly Provision)

Good Good Good Good

3. Leadership and Management Adequate Good Good Good

KEY QUESTION JUDGEMENT
November 

2015

JUDGEMENT
June 
 2017

JUDGEMENT
April 2018 

 

TARGET 
July 
2019

1.1 Standards and progress overall (Formerly 
Standards)

Adequate Adequate Adequate Good

1.2 Standards and progress of specific groups 
(Formerly part of 1.1)

Adequate Good

1.3 Wellbeing and attitudes to learning
(Formerly Wellbeing)

Adequate Adequate Adequate Good

2.1 Support for School Improvement Good Good Good Excellent

2.2 Support for vulnerable learners 
(Formerly Support for Additional Learning 
Needs)

Adequate Adequate Adequate Good

2.3 Other education support services NEW Adequate Good

2.3 Promoting Social Inclusion and Well Being 
(Now part of 2.2)

Good Good

Page 18



KEY QUESTION JUDGEMENT
November 

2015

JUDGEMENT
June 
 2017

JUDGEMENT
April 2018 

 

TARGET 
July 
2019

2.4 Access and School Places (Now part of 2.3) Good Good

3.1 Quality and effectiveness of leaders and 
managers (Formerly Impact of Leadership) 

Adequate Good Good Good

3.2 Self-evaluation and improvement planning 
(Formerly Improving Quality)

Good Good Adequate Good

3.3 Professional learning NEW Adequate Good

3.3 Partnership Working (Now threaded 
through other questions)

Adequate Adequate 

3.4 Use of resources (Formerly Resource 
Management)

Good Good Good Excellent

Judgement descriptors
 Excellent – Very strong, sustained performance and practice
 Good – Strong features, although minor aspects may require improvement
 Adequate and needs improvement – Strengths outweigh weaknesses, but important aspects 

require improvement
 Unsatisfactory and needs urgent improvement – Important weaknesses outweigh strengths

Page 19



Appendix 2
Learning department self-evaluation summary against Estyn Inspection Areas

Inspection area Judgement Areas for improvement
1.1 Standards and 

progress overall

1.2 Standards and 
progress of 
specific groups

The current position of outcomes for standards is adequate and needs 
improvement because overall attainment at the average level in the 
foundation phase and key stage 2 is good and adequate in key stage 3. Overall 
attainment at the above average levels is adequate in foundation phase, 
unsatisfactory in key stage 2, and good in key stage 3. At key stage 4, 
outcomes at the Level 1 indicator places all schools in the top 50% and 
outcomes for level 2 places 50% of schools in the top 50% when compared to 
similar schools. Key stage 4 performance is unsatisfactory in nearly all key 
indicators.

 Ensure schools focus on improving outcomes in:
o Personal Social Development (PSD) in the foundation phase
o Oracy in key stage 2 and key stage 3
o Science and mathematics in key stage 3
o Boys in the foundation phase, key stage 2 and key stage 3 

because they are at risk of falling behind
o Above average outcomes in the foundation phase and key 

stage 2
o Improve key stage 4 performance in all indicators

 Continue to focus on improving the quality of leadership in all 
schools including
Governance.

 Implement a borough wide wellbeing strategy to remove 
barriers to learning for vulnerable groups of pupils.

1.3 Wellbeing and 
attitudes to 
learning

The current position of outcomes for wellbeing is adequate and needs 
improvement because although a number of approaches have resulted in 
improved outcomes for pupils, attendance is an area that needs further 
improvement.

 Improve rates of attendance including that for persistent 
absentees.

 Reduce the number of exclusions and days lost.
 Continue to promote the use of alternatives to exclusions. 
 Improve levels of wellbeing for all pupils - mental, emotional 

and physical, by developing a collective approach to prevent 
and minimise harm caused by Adverse Childhood Experiences 
(ACEs). 

 Deliver training to improve support for low level mental health.
 Extend the Early Identification Vulnerability Toolkit from key 

stage 3/4 to key stage 2.
 Ensure that pupil voice influences service delivery and future 

planning. 
 Ensure a more effective and coordinated use of Capita across 

the service area.
2.1 Support for 

school 
improvement

The current position for support for school improvement is good because 
attainment at the average level is good in Foundation Phase and key stage 2, 
adequate in key stage 3 although unsatisfactory in key stage 4.   There are 
strong features with some minor aspects requiring improvement.  School 

 Improving leadership at all levels including governance.
 Promoting and facilitating increased school led improvement.
 Ensure the Central South Consortium delivers a strong school 

P
age 20



Inspection area Judgement Areas for improvement
improvement is not excellent because the support for school leadership and 
governance has not resulted in all schools being categorised as green or 
yellow and their capacity to improve as ‘A’ or ‘B’.

improvement service that improves outcomes for learners 
across Merthyr Tydfil.

 Ensure the Central South Consortium provide good value for 
money. 

2.2 Support for 
vulnerable 
learners

The current provision for the support for vulnerable learners is adequate 
and needs improvement  because although there are strengths within the 
support provided for vulnerable learners which outweigh the weaknesses, 
there remain important aspects that require further improvement.  

 Undertake a review of the learning and teaching within the 
EOTAS setting.

 Investigate the development of alternative provision within 
secondary schools.

 Review the deployment of the current Local Resource Bases.
 Investigate provision for complex SEBD pupils within the local 

authority.
 Continue to develop Greenfield Outreach Support to be more 

robust and far-reaching.
 Ensure timely sharing of information for pupils with complex 

additional learning needs between mainstream settings and 
health services.

 Ensure timely sharing of information and educational 
arrangements are in place for pupils moving from another 
authority.

2.3 Other education 
support services

The current judgment for other education support services is adequate and 
needs improvement although strengths within the various service areas 
outweigh weaknesses, there remain some important aspects that require 
further improvement. For example there is not sufficient provision in the 
county borough for pupils with Social Emotional Behaviour Disorder needs, 
and although there is sufficient capacity to meet targeted increases in Welsh 
medium school places over the medium term, capital investment is required 
over the longer term in order to provide the required places in line with 
Welsh Government targets.
Also, despite there being a significant increase in nursery provision across 
schools in order to accommodate an intake of rising 3’s in January each year 
there are not enough places either in schools or non-maintained settings at 
the start of the summer term.

 Determine a sufficient provision of nursery education places 
for the country borough in terms of the availability of part-time 
and full-time places in different locations (both EM & WM) and 
implement any necessary policy changes.

 Provide sufficient and suitable specialist provision in 
mainstream schools, special schools or otherwise, of suitable 
type to meet the needs of vulnerable pupils, including SEBD 
provision across all key stages. 

 Encourage and generate further demand for Welsh Medium 
education places.

 Further develop the use of Capita One system across Early 
Years and NEETs 

 Review the potential benefits of Capita One implementation to 
support Youth Support Services.

P
age 21



Inspection area Judgement Areas for improvement
 Develop the new 30 hour education offer for working parents.
 Implement development workshops to improve strategic 

embedding of the principles of play across the local authority.
 Progress an application for the Youth Service quality mark

3.1 Quality and 
effectiveness of 
leaders and 
managers

The quality and effectiveness of managers is good because leadership in the 
local authority has been successful in making and sustaining improvements 
over the last four years with standards good or better in many areas.  The 
clear vision and focus on key initiatives so that services to schools contribute 
to high quality provision in schools.  Effective and efficient service delivery 
impacts well on standards and the quality of education and training for all 
children and young people.  Partnership working within and beyond the 
council is well established and leads to effective services e.g. in ALN.

 Continue to promote multi-agency collaboration through the 
Public Service Board in identifying and unblocking barriers to 
improvement and in holding statutory partnerships to 
account.

 Ensure future school organisation plans are communicated 
clearly with all stakeholders. 

 Ensure performance management for all staff contributes to 
the forward strategic priorities and plans for education 
services.

3.2 Self-evaluation 
and improvement 
planning

Self-evaluation and improvement planning is adequate and needs 
improvement although strengths within the various service areas outweigh 
weaknesses, there remain some important aspects that require further 
improvement.  Systems and processes are embedded within the education 
department, and have led to sustained improvements in standards and 
quality in both schools and in the local authority.  Leaders, managers and 
elected members have an accurate picture and understanding of the 
authority’s strengths and weaknesses. They routinely make good use of a 
range of rigorous monitoring activities. Performance data is consistently used 
to monitor progress and plan for improvement.  There is a sustained focus on 
achieving progress against the authority’s priorities and on ensuring an 
effective and efficient service delivery.

 Provide opportunities for children, young people and their 
families to inform self-evaluation and improvement planning.

 Ensure recommendations from Estyn thematic reviews inform 
future school improvement planning.

 Further develop departmental self-evaluation processes to 
identify priorities for improvement. 

3.3 Professional 
learning

The current judgment for professional learning is adequate and needs 
improvement. Staff do have the opportunity to keep up to date with 
knowledge about their areas of responsibility through attendance at 
conferences, WG and local workshops however this is not shared across the 
department consistently

 Ensure that key messages from professional learning 
opportunities are shared with colleagues within and across 
departments.

 Further develop opportunities for measuring impact that 
professional learning activities have on improving the quality 
of outcomes & provision.

 Continue to ensure that staff have the opportunity to identify 
professional learning needs via performance management.

P
age 22



Inspection area Judgement Areas for improvement
3.4 Use of resources The judgement for resources management is good because staffing, 

accommodation and financial resources are managed and deployed 
effectively to support learning and improvement. The authority makes good 
use of the funding it receives and spending decisions relate well to strategic 
priorities for improvement and benefits for schools and their learners. 
Partnership activity provides good value for money because it contributes to 
improved outcomes for learners in aspects which the authority and its schools 
alone could not provide. 

 Ensure the fundamental review of the whole formula funding 
will assist the Schools Forum identify anticipated requirement 
for savings from 2019-20 onwards. 

 Provide additional resource investment into the use of Capita 
One in order to maximise the opportunities provided by access 
to high quality and timely management information to help 
improve outcomes for pupils and young people.

 Ensure the outcomes of the ALN review is properly resourced 
to ensure that specialist provision is fit for purpose, including 
maximising the use of available resources, recycling 
efficiencies where they can be made and requesting additional 
resources where appropriate. 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Best Start to Life – Children and young people are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful 
learners and confident individuals  

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1 We have set Wellbeing Objectives for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
(MTCBC), and how we intend to achieve these objectives is set out in our plan 
‘Focus on the Future: Wellbeing in our Community’.  The focus of this report is on 
how we will ensure children and young people develop the knowledge, skills and 
attributes they will need to flourish in life, learning and work.

1.2 The Council is committed to ensuring excellent educational achievement by 
delivering its key strategies and through joint working with a range of partners.  In 
addition, there are specific projects that the Council will undertake to deliver the 
MTCBC wellbeing objectives and contribute to the national wellbeing goals.

1.3 There are five wellbeing projects:
 Achieving excellence in schools
 Improving outcomes for pupils with Additional Learning Needs (ALN)
 Improving outcomes for Children Looked After (CLA)
 Improving pupils wellbeing
 Active Merthyr Tydfil 

1.4 This report provides a judgment on the performance of the four wellbeing projects.  It 
also looks at the impact on outcomes for children and young people through the 
performance of Key Performance Indicators.

Date Written 4th April 2018

Accountable for Delivery Sue Walker
Joanne Colsey, Chris Hole, Sarah 
Bowen, Mark Thomas

Wellbeing Champion Steve Peters

Committee Date 16th April 2018

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1 The content of this report be discussed and noted.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1 The Council is committed to delivering excellent services.  It will do this by delivering 
its key strategies and through joint working with a range of partners.  The key 
strategies that focus on delivering excellent services in education are:
 Learning Strategy
 Early Years Strategy
 Youth Services Strategy
 Central South Consortium (CSC) Business Plan
 Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan

3.2 The Learning Department works with other departments in MTCBC, with external 
partners through the Public Service Board (PSB) and the Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB) and with other local authorities e.g. to deliver joint services.

3.3 In our plan ‘Focus on the Future: Wellbeing in our Community’, we set out how we 
intend to achieve the Wellbeing Objectives.  The purpose of this report is to coordinate 
the performance and project information against our Wellbeing Objective ‘Children get 
the best start to life’.

Legislative Context

3.4 1The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 specifies that we must work to 
improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales by 
maximising our contribution to the seven Wellbeing Goals (See Appendix 1).

3.5 We must do this in accordance with the sustainable development principle, which 
means that we act in a manner that seeks to ensure the needs of the present are met 
without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. To 
achieve this, we must adopt the five ways of working:
 Long Term
 Preventative
 Involvement
 Collaboration
 Integrated

3.6 2The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 specifies that we must seek to 
improve the wellbeing of people who need care and support, carers who need support 
and for transforming social services in Wales.  The focus of this Act is on what matters 
to the person and how they can use their own strengths and resources to do those 

1 Read the essential guide to the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015
2 Read the essential guide to the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014Page 26

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/4/contents
http://thewaleswewant.co.uk/sites/default/files/Guide%20to%20the%20WFGAct.pdf
http://gov.wales/docs/dhss/publications/160127socialservicesacten.pdf


things, which is determined by an assessment that involves the person and the 
professional(s).

4.0 WHERE WE WERE

4.1 An overview of the state of wellbeing in Cwm Taf was prepared in an assessment of 
wellbeing3, which provides background information on wellbeing in Merthyr Tydfil and 
Rhondda Cynon Taf.  In addition, a population assessment4 was prepared to provide 
an overview of care and support needs of the people of Cwm Taf and the range of 
services required to meet those needs.  The findings from the wellbeing and 
population assessment contributed to the development of the statement of wellbeing 
for Merthyr Tydfil.

Wellbeing Statement

4.2 In our wellbeing statement, we set out the scope of each wellbeing objective and 
outline why we consider that meeting the objective will maximise our contribution to the 
achievement of the seven wellbeing goals.  The focus of this report is on the wellbeing 
objective:

‘Children and young people are equipped with the skills they need to be 
successful learners and confident individuals’

From a Merthyr Tydfil perspective, we will focus on the following components and their 
related outcomes in order to achieve our wellbeing objective:
 Children and young people have high levels of literacy, numeracy and ICT skills 
 Children and young people have good social and emotional skills
 Children and young people are physically active
 Young people involved in youth services, enhancing their knowledge and skills

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW

5.1 During year 1 of Focus on the Future, there were five projects identified to help deliver 
wellbeing improvements that would support the delivery of the wellbeing objective 
Children and young people are equipped with the skills they need to be 
successful learners and confident individuals.  This report provides an evaluation 
of those five wellbeing projects:

Project 
name

Project 
lead

Project
Length

STATUS Evidence to support 
the Status

(maximum of 3 points)

Next steps

Improving 
Pupil 
wellbeing 

Sarah 
Bowen

Jul 
2017-
Jul2018

GREEN  Mind has delivered 
training to sixteen 
schools and LA staff 
on how to support low 
level mental health.

 Schools to take 
up offer of in 
school support 
from Mind during 
the Summer 

3 Information on the assessment of wellbeing is published on the Cwm Taf Portal.
4 Information on the population assessment is published on the Cwm Taf Portal.Page 27

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/cwm-taf-well-being
http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/cwm-taf-population-assessment


Project 
name

Project 
lead

Project
Length

STATUS Evidence to support 
the Status

(maximum of 3 points)

Next steps

 The “toolbox” of 
resources developed 
by Inclusion to 
support low level 
mental health and 
build resilience has 
been shared 
electronically with all 
schools and provided 
as part of a resource 
pack with that 
produced by the 
Youth Forum and Up 
and Coming.  

 The Behaviour Self-
evaluation has been 
completed by 14 
(50%) schools, all of 
whom have received 
feedback.

 The Wellbeing 
Survey having been 
trialled by one school 
will not be rolled out 
across all schools 
due to the lack of 
engagement from 
schools as it was felt 
that there were other 
tools already in place 
for assessing this and 
therefore it would not 
provide any additional 
information

Term. 

 From this good 
practice has 
been gleamed 
and shared with 
all schools, along 
with the 
previously 
produced 
guidance on 
Positive 
Classroom 
Behaviour 
Management.

Achieving 
excellence 
in schools

Joe 
Colsey

Jul 
2017-
Jul2018

GREEN  Seven schools have 
participated in a peer 
enquiry and resulted 
in an accurate 
detailed report 
identifying areas for 
improvement.

 All schools are part of 
a governor 
improvement group.7 
schools have 

 Encourage 
schools 
categorised as 
requiring a ‘C’ 
capacity to 
improve to 
undertake a peer 
enquiry – 2 
schools.

 Encourage 
Page 28



Project 
name

Project 
lead

Project
Length

STATUS Evidence to support 
the Status

(maximum of 3 points)

Next steps

completed the self-
evaluation audit tool 
and have a detailed 
action plan to 
address the areas for 
improvement.

 12 schools are in the 
process of completing 
the self-evaluation 
audit tool.

schools 
categorised as 
requiring a 
‘yellow’ level of 
support for the 
past two years to 
undertake a peer 
enquiry – 4 
schools.

 Ensure the 12 
schools complete 
the self-
evaluation audit 
tool and have a 
detailed action 
plan in place to 
address the 
areas for 
improvement.

 Ensure the 
seven schools 
who have not 
engaged in the 
self-evaluation 
tool commence 
the process.

Active 
Merthyr 
Tydfil

John 
Sellwood

April 
2017-
March 
2018

Blue M Girls
 M Girls sessions 

weekly in all four high 
schools with an 
average of over 100 
girls taking part 
weekly.

Physical Literacy 
 “Books to life” at 

Trelewis Primary 
School with over 20 
families using the 
home resource. 

 Dance tots 
workshops delivered 
with 20 Teacher’s 
and Learning Support 
Assistants upskilled.

Leadership in sport
 14 Primary Schools 

and 84 Young Page 29



Project 
name

Project 
lead

Project
Length

STATUS Evidence to support 
the Status

(maximum of 3 points)

Next steps

Leaders engage 
delivering daily 
Physical Activity 
sessions in the 
school yard to school 
mates.

Improving 
outcomes 
for Children 
looked After

Annabel
Lloyd

2018-
2019

YELLOW  Some looked after 
young people do 
have stable 
placements and 
experience 
disruption.

 Some looked after 
young people’s early 
life experiences 
continue to impact on 
their attainment long 
after becoming 
looked after.

 The Looked after 
education service  
staff are challenging 
their job evaluation 
results

 This project is 
continuing next 
year.

Improving 
outcomes 
for pupils 
with ALN

Sue
Walker

2018-
2019

RED  The current provision 
for pupils with 
Additional Learning 
Needs (ALN) does 
not meet the needs of 
all vulnerable pupils.  
Too many pupils 
receiving their 
education in 
unsuitable 
placements

 Revise the 
current Learning 
resources base 
provision within 
the county 
borough and 
make 
appropriate 
adjustments 
subject to 
cabinet approval.

Page 30



5.2 In 2017 outcomes were judged to be adequate.

Key Performance Indicators
2016/17
Target 

2016/17
Achieved

  WA
Average 

LA 
Rank

Pupils who achieve the expected level in Key Stage 2 
(Core Subject Indicator) 93% 90.2% 89.5 8th

Pupils who achieve the L1 threshold 99% 95% 94.4% 9th

Pupils who achieve the L2 inclusive Eng./Welsh and 
maths 62% 42.4% 54.6% 21st

Pupils eligible for Free School Meals who achieve the 
L2 inclusive Eng./Welsh and maths 39% 23.5% 28.5% N/A

Pupils looked after who achieve the L2 inclusive 
Eng./Welsh/ and maths N/A 9.1% N/A N/A

Percentage of young people  who are Not in Education, 
Employment or Training (NEET) N/A 1.03% 2% Joint 

1ST 
Attendance of primary school pupils 96% 94.3% 94.9% 22nd

Attendance of secondary school pupils 96% 93.0% 94.1% 19th

Primary schools participating in the Walk a Mile N/A 82% N/A N/A
SURVEY MEASURE
Hooked on sport 48%(2015) 13th

N/A= not available

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE

6.1 By 2020, we want attainment of children and young people in Merthyr Tydfil to be 
ranked within the top ten of local authorities in Wales.  To make the necessary 
improvements in standards we have set ambitious targets for the next two academic 
years.

Status Delivery Confidence Definition
Blue Completed

Green Successful delivery appears likely with no major outstanding issues to 
threaten delivery

Yellow Successful delivery appears probable but issues exists requiring 
management attention

Amber Successful delivery is in doubt with major risks or issues in a number of 
key areas

Red Successful delivery appears to be unachievable

Page 31



Key Performance Indicators
2017/18
Target

2018/19
Target

Pupils who achieve the expected level in Key Stage 2 (Core Subject Indicator) 93.0% 93.5%
Pupils who achieve the L1 threshold 99.0% 99.0%
Pupils who achieve the L2 inclusive Eng./Welsh and maths 62.0% 64.0%
Pupils eligible Free School Meals achieve the L2 inclusive Eng./Welsh & maths 45% 47%
Pupils looked after who achieve the L2 inclusive Eng./Welsh/ and maths

Percentage of young people  who are NEET 1% 0.8%
Attendance of primary school pupils 96.5% 96.5%
Attendance of secondary school pupils 96.5% 96.5%
Primary schools participating in the Walk a Mile 100% 100%
SURVEY MEASURE

Hooked on sport 57%(2017)

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT

7.1 At Governance Scrutiny on the 9th January 2018 the Performance Team presented a 
lessons learned report looking back on the first year of the wellbeing plan Focus on the 
Future, to identify how the Council could strengthen its contribution to wellbeing and 
improve the scrutiny process.

7.2 The findings from the lessons learned identified three broad themes to deliver the 
necessary improvements:
 Streamline the scrutiny process  
 Data quality
 Clearer reporting and information sharing

7.3 In response to these findings, the plan Focus on the Future: Wellbeing in our 
community has been refocused to improve integration to deliver better outcomes and 
improve accountability.  The refocused plan has a reduced number of objectives, down 
from nine to four, which sit under the four wellbeing themes.

Theme Wellbeing Objective

Best Start Children and young people have the best start to life and are equipped with the 
skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals.

Working Life
People feel supported to develop their skills to meet the needs of both 
established and new businesses, with a developing, safe, attractive 
infrastructure that establishes Merthyr Tydfil as a ‘must visit’ destination

Environmental 
Wellbeing

Communities protect, enhance and promote our environment and countryside

Page 32



Living Well People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where 
they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.

7.4 Within the Learning Department, integrating the two Best Start wellbeing objectives 
into one objective will ensure a robust alignment with the new Estyn Inspection 
Framework and the key education strategies to improve standards.

7.5 On the 27th of February 2018 the Education Service held an away day to bring 
together all partners from across the Council who deliver services to improve 
outcomes for children and young people.  All participants took part in interactive 
activities which helped us to identify common areas for improvement.  The following 
projects have been identified to help us deliver our priorities for improvement:
 Capita
 Pupil voice
 Vulnerable learners

We also identified the new wellbeing projects for the coming year that will continue to 
focus on delivering wellbeing improvements:
 Improving outcomes for Children Looked After (continuation from year 1)
 Resilience
 School holiday enrichment programme (SHEP)

7.6 To facilitate organisational learning and better information sharing, wellbeing projects 
will be reported to Governance Scrutiny in Quarter 2 and Quarter 4.  This will support 
the integration of wellbeing projects across all four wellbeing themes, and allow best 
practice and lessons learned to be cascaded across all scrutiny committees.

7.7 Reporting wellbeing projects to Governance, has the additional benefit of addressing 
the issue of congested agendas at specialised committees and will ensure there is a 
greater focus on core business. 

SUE WALKER
(CHIEF OFFICER (LEARNING)

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

Page 33



Appendix 1

Page 34



Civic Centre, Castle Street, 
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen

Best Start to Life – Children get the best start to life 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT

1.1. We have set Wellbeing Objectives for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
(MTCBC), and how we intend to achieve these objectives is set out in our plan Focus 
on the Future: Wellbeing in our Community.  The focus of this report is on how we 
will ensure children (aged 0 to 7) get the best start to life and have a positive early 
experience to ensure they are ready to learn, ready for school and have good life 
chances.

1.2. The Council is committed to ensuring excellent educational achievement by delivering 
its key strategies and through joint working with a range of partners.  In addition, there 
are specific projects that the Council will undertake to deliver the Merthyr Tydfil CBC 
wellbeing objectives and contribute to the national wellbeing goals.

1.3. There are four wellbeing projects:
 Supporting Child Development
 Improving family involvement in learning
 Achieving Excellence in Schools
 Active Merthyr Tydfil 

1.4 This report provides a judgment on the performance of the four wellbeing projects.  It 
also looks at the impact on outcomes for children and young people through the 
performance of Key Performance Indicators.

Date Written 4th April 2018

Accountable for Delivery Sue Walker
Joanne Colsey, Chris Hole, Sarah 
Bowen, Mark Thomas

Wellbeing Champion Steve Jones

Committee Date 16th April 2018

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)

2.1. The content of this report be discussed and noted.

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

3.1. The Council is committed to delivering excellent services.  It will do this by delivering its 
key strategies and through joint working with a range of partners.  The key strategies 
that focus on delivering excellent services in education are:
 Learning Strategy
 Early Years Strategy
 Youth Services Strategy
 Central South Consortium (CSC) Business Plan
 Active Merthyr Tydfil Plan

3.2. The Learning Department works with other departments in MTCBC, with external 
partners through the Public Service Board (PSB) and the Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB) and with other local authorities e.g. to deliver joint services.

3.3. In our plan [Focus on the Future: Wellbeing in our Community], we set out how we 
intend to achieve the Wellbeing Objectives.  The purpose of this report is to coordinate 
the performance and project information against our Wellbeing Objective “Children get 
the best start to life”.

Legislative Context

3.4. 1The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 specifies that we must work to 
improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales by 
maximising our contribution to the seven Wellbeing Goals (See Appendix 1). 

We must do this in accordance with the sustainable development principle, which 
means that we act in a manner that seeks to ensure the needs of the present are met 
without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. To 
achieve this, we must adopt the five ways of working:
 Long Term
 Preventative
 Involvement
 Collaboration
 Integrated

1 Read the essential guide to the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Page 36

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted
http://thewaleswewant.co.uk/sites/default/files/Guide%20to%20the%20WFGAct.pdf


3.5. 2The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 specifies that we must seek to 
improve the wellbeing of people who need care and support, carers who need support 
and for transforming social services in Wales.  The focus of this Act is on what matters 
to the person and how they can use their own strengths and resources to do those 
things, which is determined by an assessment that involves the person and the 
professional(s).

4.0 WHERE WE WERE

4.1. An overview of the state of wellbeing in Cwm Taf was prepared in an assessment of 
wellbeing3, which provides background information on wellbeing in Merthyr Tydfil and 
Rhondda Cynon Taf.  In addition, a population assessment4 was prepared to provide an 
overview of care and support needs of the people of Cwm Taf and the range of services 
required to meet those needs.  The findings from the wellbeing and population 
assessment contributed to the development of the statement of wellbeing for Merthyr 
Tydfil.

Wellbeing Statement

4.2. In our wellbeing statement we set out the scope of each wellbeing objective and outline 
why we consider that meeting the objective will maximise our contribution to the 
achievement of the seven Wellbeing Goals (see Appendix 1).  The focus of this report is 
on the wellbeing objective:

‘Children get the best start to life’

4.3. From a Merthyr Tydfil perspective, we will focus on the following components and their 
related outcomes in order to achieve our wellbeing objective:
 Children having a nurturing and stimulating home environment
 Children having access to high quality pre-school and school education
 Helping mothers to have good maternal health
 Helping parents and carers enhance their ability to support their children’s learning

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW

5.1. During year one of Focus on the Future, there were four projects identified to help 
deliver wellbeing improvements that would support the delivery of the wellbeing 
objective ‘Children get the best start to life’.  This report provides an evaluation of 
those four  wellbeing projects:

2 Read the essential guide to the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014
3 Information on the assessment of wellbeing is published on the Cwm Taf Portal.
4 Information on the population assessment is published on the Cwm Taf Portal.

Page 37

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/4/contents
http://gov.wales/docs/dhss/publications/160127socialservicesacten.pdf
http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/cwm-taf-well-being
http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/cwm-taf-population-assessment


Project 
name

Project 
lead

Project
Length

STATUS Evidence to support the 
Status

(maximum of 3 points)

Next steps

Supporting 
child 
development 

Chris 
Hole

April 
2017-
March 
2018

GREEN  New language 
development pathway 
in place  and reported 
to Poverty group on 
outcomes 

 Smoking cessation 
programme 
commissioned 

 Parenting 
programmes 
strategically 
commissioned 

 Monitor impact of 
changes 

 Projects now are 
considered  business 
as usual  within 
Funding flexibility 
remit   

Improving 
parental 
involvement 
in learning 

Sarah 
Bowen
Chris 
Hole

Jul 
2017-
Jul2018

GREEN  18 out of 28 schools, 
which equates to 64%, 
have responded to the 
Parental Engagement 
Survey. Key areas for 
improvement and 
good practice have 
been identified. 

 A  Marketing company 
has been 
commissioned to 
develop a Corporate 
Strategy for Parental 
Engagement

 Parental 
enrolments/accreditati
ons achievements.

 Child Impact 
Monitoring Form

 Parent Evaluation 
Forms 

 Inclusion Service and 
the Tackling Poverty 
Group to develop and 
market a Corporate 
Strategy for Parental 
Engagement with the 
support of Marketing 
Company. 

 Encourage all schools 
to take part in the 
Parental Engagement 
Survey

 Family Learning 
Projects now are 
considered business 
as usual within ACL 
remit. 

Achieving 
excellence in 
schools

Joe 
Colsey

Jul 
2017-
Jul2018

GREEN  Seven schools have 
participated in a peer 
enquiry and resulted in 
an accurate detailed 
report identifying 
areas for 
improvement.

 All schools are part of 
a governor 
improvement group.

 7 schools have 
completed the self-
evaluation audit tool 
and have a detailed 
action plan to address 
the areas for 
improvement.

 Encourage schools 
categorised as 
requiring a ‘C’ capacity 
to improve to 
undertake a peer 
enquiry – 2 schools.

 Encourage schools 
categorised as 
requiring a ‘yellow’ 
level of support for the 
past two years to 
undertake a peer 
enquiry – 4 schools.

 Ensure the 12 schools 
complete the self-
evaluation audit tool 
and have a detailed 
action plan in place to 
address the areas for 

Page 38



Project 
name

Project 
lead

Project
Length

STATUS Evidence to support the 
Status

(maximum of 3 points)

Next steps

 12 schools are in the 
process of completing 
the self-evaluation 
audit tool.

improvement.
 Ensure the 7 schools 

who have not engaged 
in the self-evaluation 
audit tool commence 
the process.

Active 
Merthyr Tydfil

John 
Sellwood

April 
2017-
March 
2018

BLUE  Bump fit:  42 
pregnant mothers 
along with the Cwm 
Taf Midwifery team 
take part in a 
consultation to help 
design appropriate 
interventions.  

 Joint workshops have 
taken place with 
midwifes and health 
visitors to ensure there 
is a consistent 
message of the 
benefits of physical 
activity in pregnancy, 
and to ensure that 
every contact counts.

 Buggy Running: 
People that have 
participated in the 
intervention have 
moved on to additional 
independent activities 
such as Parkrun.

 The Subjective 
Wellbeing score has 
improved for all 
participants.

 Continue to support 
the commissioned 
providers to deliver the 
programmes.

Status Delivery Confidence Definition
Blue Completed

Green Successful delivery appears likely with no major outstanding issues to threaten 
delivery

Yellow Successful delivery appears probable but issues exists requiring management 
attention

Amber Successful delivery is in doubt with major risks or issues in a number of key 
areas

Red Successful delivery appears to be unachievable

Page 39



5.2. In 2017 outcomes were judged to be adequate.

Key Performance Indicators
2016/17
Target

2016/17
Achieved

WA
average

LA
RANKING

Eligible children from Flying Start areas taking up full 
or reduced offer of childcare N/A 94% 88% 4th 

Flying Start children 0 to 1, living in high resilient 
families N/A N/A N/A N/A

Eligible children from Flying Start areas screened 
using WellComm Speech and Language tool, as 
being within normal limits on Exit of Pre-school at 3 
years

N/A 63% N/A N/A

Flying Start Children achieving Outcome 1 in all 4 
areas within the Foundation Phase Compact on exit 
from childcare setting

N/A 50% N/A N/A

Pupils achieving the expected level in the Foundation 
Phase Outcome Indicator 93% 88.1% 87.3% 12th 

Pregnant women in Flying Start areas who give up 
smoking during pregnancy N/A N/A N/A N/A

*N/A = not available 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE
6.1. By 2020, we want attainment of children and young people in Merthyr Tydfil to be 

ranked within the top ten of local authorities in Wales.  To make the necessary 
improvements in standards we have set ambitious targets for the next two academic 
years.

Key Performance Indicators
2017/18
Target

2018/19
Target

Eligible children from Flying Start areas taking up full or reduced offer 
of childcare 95% 96%

Flying Start children 0 to 1, living in high resilient families To be 
agreed*

To be 
agreed*

Eligible children from Flying Start areas screened using WellComm 
Speech and Language tool, as being within normal limits on Exit of Pre-
school at 3 years

65% 66%

Flying Start Children achieving Outcome 1 in all 4 areas within the 
Foundation Phase Compact on exit from childcare setting 52% 53%

Pupils achieving the expected level in the Foundation Phase Outcome 
Indicator 93% 94%

Pregnant women in Flying Start areas who give up smoking during 
pregnancy 10% 15%

*Once the baseline data has been collated and analysed, targets will be set

Page 40



7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT

7.1. At Governance Scrutiny on the 9th January 2018 the Performance Team presented a 
lessons learned report looking back on the first year of the wellbeing plan Focus on the 
Future, to identify how the Council could strengthen its contribution to wellbeing and 
improve the scrutiny process.

7.2. The findings from the lessons learned identified three broad themes to deliver the 
necessary improvements:
 Streamline the scrutiny process  
 Data quality
 Clearer reporting and information sharing

7.3. In response to these findings, the plan Focus on the Future: Wellbeing in our community 
has been refocused to improve integration to deliver better outcomes and improve 
accountability.  The refocused plan has a reduced number of objectives, down from nine 
to four, which sit under the four wellbeing themes.

Theme Wellbeing Objective

Best Start Children and young people have the best start to life and are equipped with 
the skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals.

Working Life
People feel supported to develop their skills to meet the needs of both 
established and new businesses, with a developing, safe, attractive 
infrastructure that establishes Merthyr Tydfil as a ‘must visit’ destination

Environmental 
Wellbeing

Communities protect, enhance and promote our environment and 
countryside

Living Well People are empowered to live independently within their communities, 
where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.

7.4. Within the Learning Department, integrating the two Best Start wellbeing objectives into 
one objective will ensure a robust alignment with the new Estyn Inspection Framework 
and the key education strategies to improve standards.

7.5. On the 27th of February 2018 the Learning Department held an Away Day to bring 
together all partners from across the Council who deliver services to improve outcomes 
for children and young people.  All participants took part in interactive activities which 
helped us to identify common areas for improvement.  The following projects have been 
identified to help us deliver our priorities for improvement:
 Capita
 Pupil voice
 Vulnerable learners

Page 41



We also identified the new wellbeing projects for the coming year that will continue to 
focus on delivering wellbeing improvements. 
 Improving outcomes for Children Looked After (continuation from year 1)
 Resilience
 School holiday enrichment programme (SHEP)

7.6. To facilitate organisational learning and better information sharing, wellbeing projects 
will be reported to Governance Scrutiny in Quarter 2 and Quarter 4.  This will support 
the integration of wellbeing projects across all four wellbeing themes, and allow best 
practice and lessons learned to be cascaded across all scrutiny committees.

7.7. Reporting wellbeing projects to Governance, has the additional benefit of addressing 
the issue of congested agendas at specialised committees and will ensure there is a 
greater focus on core business. 

SUE WALKER
(CHIEF OFFICER (LEARNING)

COUNCILLOR LISA MYTTON
CABINET MEMBER FOR LEARNING

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution? 

Page 42



Appendix 1

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 15 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
       Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 
 
 

To:  Committee Members, 

Developing a Work Programme for 2018/19 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1   At the start of each municipal year each Scrutiny Committees begins to devise a 

work programme for the following 12 months. 
 
1.2   This report provides some information for committee members to consider when 

preparing the work programme. 
 
2.0  RECOMMENDATION(S) that 
 
2.1    The Committee notes the contents of this report. 
 
2.2   The Committee considers establishing a Task and Finish Group to prepare a draft 

work programme for submission to the next committee meeting for further 
discussion / agreement. 

 

 
3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
3.1 Scrutiny was introduced in local government across the UK through the Local 

Government Act 2000, as the traditional “Committee System” of local government 
administration was replaced with a more streamlined “Cabinet and Scrutiny 
System”. Scrutiny was seen by the Centre for Public Scrutiny as having four 
‘cornerstones’, namely:  

 
• Led by ‘independent minded governors who own the scrutiny role;  
• Acts as a ‘critical friend’ of the executive, holding decision makers to account;  
• Represents the views and concerns of the citizen; and  
• Leads to the improvement of public services.  

 
3.2 Broadly speaking, local government scrutiny committees operate in a manner 

similar to the select committees supporting the UK Parliament. They are composed 

Date Written 2nd April 2018 
Report Author Howard Jones 
Service Area Scrutiny 
Exempt/Non Exempt Non-Exempt 
Committee Date 16th April  2018 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



 

of non-executive councillors of all political groups (in proportion to the Council’s 
overall political balance), and meet both in public and in private to:  
• Help the Administration develop and review policies;  
• Test the Council’s performance and offer advice for improvement;  
• Provide pre-decision scrutiny of decisions that the administration is about to 

make;  
• Periodically call in for examination decisions that the administration has 

recently made;  
• Offer a platform for citizens and citizen groups to represent their concerns or 

ideas for improvement. 
 
3.3 Scrutiny is recognised as playing a vital and statutory role in the council's 

governance, shaping the agenda, influencing policy and holding decision makers 
to account, engaging the public and building the organisation’s resilience and 
accountability in its working with regulators, partners, the media and citizens. 

 
3.4 Although scrutiny covers all areas over which the Cabinet has authority, a number 

of key areas are specified in legislation and should be taken into account when 
developing the work programmes. For instance:  

 
• The Police and Justice Act 2006 requires each Council to designate a 

committee as its statutory Crime and Disorder Committee, providing powers to 
scrutinise the way the Council is working with the Police and other agencies to 
tackle crime and disorder and support community safety;  
 

• The Local Government Measure (Wales) 2009 gives scrutiny a statutory role 
in securing improvement of public services under the Wales Programme for 
Improvement, providing assurance to bodies like Wales Audit Office, Estyn 
and the Care and Social Services Inspectorate for Wales that the Council is 
providing robust and effective self-regulation;  

 
• The Local Government Measure (Wales) 2011 requires Councils to ensure 

that its scrutiny function takes into account the citizen’s view, making 
provisions for public co-option onto scrutiny committees, a close relationship 
between the Council and its local voluntary services council, and requiring that 
authorities have protocols for public involvement.  

 
• The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 specifies that each 

Council should designate a committee as its statutory committee to scrutinise 
the Council and its local strategic partners in health, policing, environment and 
the third sector working to secure wellbeing for the population through its local 
Public Services Board (Cwm Taf Public Services Board). 

 
3.5 The quality of the environment in which scrutiny operates, the practice of scrutiny 

and the outcomes that it delivers can be usefully measured through the framework 
of the Characteristics of Effective Scrutiny in Wales (see APPENDIX I), developed 
by all 22 local authorities in Wales in partnership with the Centre for Public 
Scrutiny and the Wales Audit Office. This framework identifies 15 key 
characteristics that if followed effectively will deliver: 
 
• Better outcomes for the area; 
• Better decisions for the organisation; and 

Page 50



 

• Better engagement with the public. 
 

 

4.0 DEVELOPING THE WORK PROGRAMME. 
 
4.1 Setting a work programme for each of the scrutiny committees is an important 

stage in the Scrutiny process. An effective and well planned work programme will 
identify the key topics that scrutiny will consider over the coming year (June 2018 
to May 2019). The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 requires Scrutiny 
Committees to publish forward plans of their scrutiny work. 

 
4.2 Scrutiny is a Member-led function and as such it is up to the scrutiny committees 

themselves to determine the work programmes. It is vital that scrutiny members 
take responsibility for both drawing up and managing their own work programme. 
The work programme is a working document that is subject to change and 
Members can add, remove, and defer items as necessary. A Work Programme will 
provide a clear picture to the public and partners of planned scrutiny activity 

 
4.3 “Effective work programming is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. Done 

well, it can help to lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely work on 
issues of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done badly, scrutiny can 
end up wasting time and resources on issues where the impact of any work done is 
likely to be minimal.”1  

 
4.4 The Wales Audit Office2 says that “Councils should ensure that the contents of 

forward work programmes are based on sound criteria with a clear rationale for 
topic selection and that sufficient consideration is given to the method of scrutiny, 
rather than just the selection of topics. A key criterion for the selection of topics 
and the method of scrutiny should be the extent to which scrutiny committees are 
likely to have an impact in the area they have selected.”  

 
“To help ensure that scrutiny has an impact, scrutiny committees may have to 
balance a desire to examine a large number of topics with the likelihood of 
securing greater impact through focusing on a small number of items in more 
detail.” 
 

4.5 Some key principles for setting work programmes are shown below. A topic does 
not need to meet all of these criteria in order to be scrutinised, but they are 
intended as a guide for prioritisation. 

 
• Is the issue a priority area for the Council? 
• Is it a key issue for local people? 
• Will it be practicable to implement the outcomes of the scrutiny? 
• Are improvements for local people likely? 
• Does it examine a poor performing service? 
• Will it result in improvements to the way the Council operates? 
• Is it related to new Government guidance or legislation? 

 

                                            
1 Centre for public Scrutiny (CfPS) 
2 “Good Scrutiny? Good Question!” 20th May 2014 http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=113&offset=0 
 

Page 51

http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=113&offset=0


 

4.6 The following criteria may also be helpful in identifying what issues are not suitable 
for scrutiny:  

 
• The issue is already being examined by another body. 
• The matter is prejudicial to the Council's interests.  
• The matter relates to a specific case falling within the complaints procedure, or 

should be dealt with via the complaints process.  
• The issue relates to an individual disciplinary matter or grievance. 

 
4.7 Sources of information to identify key topics for the work programme come from a 

wide range of sources including:  
 

• Suggestions made by Council Members and Co-opted members  
• Suggestions made by senior management  
• Suggestions made by members of the public 
• Corporate performance reports  
• Suggestions made by partners and stakeholders  
• Suggestions made by Regulators 
• The Council's Wellbeing Objectives  
• Topics from budget monitoring reports  
• Issues from audit and inspection reports  
• Performance issues 
• Inspectors’ and Regulators’ concerns (e.g. ESTYN, WAO and CSSIW) 
 
 Please see APPENDIX II (Scrutiny Work Programme – Prioritisation Process) and 
APPENDIX III (Scrutiny Work Programme Proposal / Request Form) 

 
4.8 The Committee will also have considered:- 

 

• Its areas of responsibilities / remit (see APPENDIX IV) 
• the roles that scrutiny undertakes e.g. holding the Cabinet and decision-makers 

to account; policy review and development; performance monitoring;  external 
scrutiny. (see APPENDIX V) 
 

APPENDIX VII is the work programme document that will need to be completed by 
each of the scrutiny committees 
 

 
4.9 The Welsh Government is keen that local authorities encourage members of the 

public to participate and engage in scrutiny activity. Such mechanisms of 
engagement include for example a member of the public requesting that an item 
be placed on an agenda for consideration (providing this is of immediate relevance 
to a topic included on its Work Programme); and the ability to submit evidence 
(oral or written) to a planned or ongoing scrutiny review or investigation (taken 
from the work programme).  

 

Page 52



 

4.10 An article will be in the next Contact magazine asking the public for suggestions for 
the work programmes. The Communications department will also put notifications 
out on Twitter and Facebook asking for work programme suggestions.  

 
4.11 There is a mechanism in place on the scrutiny pages of the Councils website to 

allow anyone to submit suggestions for the work programmes (online form).  
 
4.12 Should any members of the committee have suggestions to get the public more 

involved in the scrutiny process, please can you contact the scrutiny section 
accordingly. 

 
 

HOWARD JONES 
SCRUTINY OFFICER 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
   
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



National Welsh Scrutiny Officers Network  
 
Outcomes and characteristics for effective local government overview & scrutiny  
 
 
Outcome  
What does good 
scrutiny seek to 
achieve? 
 

Characteristics 
What would it look like? How could we recognise it? 

 
1. Democratic 

accountability 
drives 
improvement in 
public services.  
 

“Better Outcomes” 

 
Environment  
 
i) Overview & scrutiny has a clearly defined and valued role in the council's improvement and 

governance arrangements.  
 

ii) Overview & scrutiny has the dedicated officer support it needs from officers who are able to 
undertake independent research effectively, and provides councillors with high-quality analysis, 
advice and training.  

 
Practice  

 
iii) Overview & scrutiny inquiries are non-political, methodologically sound and incorporate a wide 

range of evidence and perspectives.   
 

Impact  
 
iv) Overview & scrutiny regularly engages in evidence based challenge of decision makers and service 

providers.  
 

v) Overview & scrutiny provides viable and well evidenced solutions to recognised problems. 
 

 
 
2. Democratic 

decision making is 
accountable, 
inclusive and 
robust.  

 
“Better decisions” 

 
Environment  
 
i) Overview & scrutiny councillors have the training and development opportunities they need to 

undertake their role effectively.  
 
ii) The process receives effective support from the council’s corporate management team who 

ensures that information provided to overview & scrutiny is of high quality and is provided in a 
timely and consistent manner.  

 
Practice  
 
iii) Overview & scrutiny is councillor-led, takes into account the views of the public, partners and 

regulators, and balances the prioritisation of community concerns against issues of strategic risk 
and importance.  

 
iv) Overview & scrutiny meetings and activities are well-planned, chaired effectively and make best 

use of the resources available to it.  
 

Impact  
 
v) Decision makers give public account for themselves at overview & scrutiny committees for their 

portfolio responsibilities.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX I 

Page 54



National Welsh Scrutiny Officers Network  
 
Outcomes and characteristics for effective local government overview & scrutiny  
 
 
 
3. The public is 

engaged in 
democratic debate 
about the current 
and future 
delivery of public 
services.  

 
“Better engagement” 

 
Environment 
 
i) Overview & scrutiny is recognised by the executive and corporate management team as an 

important council mechanism for community engagement, and facilitates greater citizen 
involvement in governance.   

 
Practice  
 
ii) Overview & scrutiny is characterised by effective communication to raise awareness of, and 

encourage participation in democratic accountability.   
 

iii) Overview & scrutiny operates non-politically and deals effectively with sensitive political issues, 
tension and conflict.  

 
iv) Overview & scrutiny builds trust and good relationships with a wide variety of internal and external 

stakeholders.  
 

Impact  
 

v) Overview and scrutiny enables the 'voice' of local people and communities across the area to be 
heard as part of decision and policy-making processes.  
 

  
 

Page 55



APPENDIX II 

  Scrutiny Work Programme – Prioritisation Process 
 
Does this issue affect a number of people 
living, working and studying in the County 
Borough? 

NO 

 
YES 

 

 

Does the issue match the strategic aims of 
the council?  

NO 

 
YES 

 

 

Will the scrutiny activity add value? Is 
performance likely to improve as a result of 
scrutiny activity?  

NO 

 
YES 

 

 

Will scrutiny work be duplicating other 
work? 

YES  

 
YES 

 

 

Is the Council due to review the relevant 
policy area (allowing scrutiny 
recommendations to influence the new 
direction to be taken)? 

 
 NO  

 
YES 

 

 
 

Is it an issue of concern to Partners, 
Stakeholders, and/or the Community? 

 

 NO 

 
YES 

 

 

Are there adequate resources available to 
do the scrutiny well? 

NO 

 
YES 

 

 

Is the scrutiny activity timely? NO 
 

YES 
 

 

 

ACCEPT 
High 

Priority 

REJECT 
CONSIDER 

Medium / 
Low 

 

Page 56



3)  A Guide to Scrutiny Work Programmes  

 

Scrutiny Work programmes 
 
Scrutiny is a Member-led function and as such it is 
up to the scrutiny committee itself to determine the 
work programme. It is vital that scrutiny members 
take responsibility for both drawing up and 
managing their own work programme 
 
Setting the work programme for scrutiny 
committees is an important stage in the scrutiny 
process. A work programme will show the topics to 
be considered over the coming months and will 
provide a clear picture to the public, officers and 
other interested parties of scrutiny activity. 
 
Scrutiny should be able to demonstrate that as a 
consequence of its activity there have been 
improvements in services and performance. It must 
also be able to show that its activities are what 
people want and can help to add the most value. It 
is therefore essential that the process for selection 
of scrutiny topics is thorough and robust. 
 
Effective work programming is the bedrock of an 
effective scrutiny function. Done well, it can help to 
lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely 
work on issues of local importance, where scrutiny 
can add value. Done badly, scrutiny can end up 
wasting time and resources on issues where the 
impact of any work done is likely to be minimal.   
 
The Wales Audit Office says that “Councils should 
ensure that the contents of forward work 
programmes are based on sound criteria with a 
clear rationale for topic selection and that sufficient 
consideration is given to the method of scrutiny, 
rather than just the selection of topics. A key 
criterion for the selection of topics and the method 
of scrutiny should be the extent to which scrutiny 
committees are likely to have an impact in the area 
they have selected.” 
 
There is no instant formula to decide which topics 
to scrutinise. The key to effective scrutiny is for 
Members to select topics where they can make 
the greatest contribution. 
 
Balancing the Workload 
 
In setting a work programme committee 
members may wish to refer to the Centre for 
Public Scrutiny’s (CfPS) ‘Four Principles of Good 
Overview and Scrutiny’ i.e.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
a) To provide a ‘critical friend’ challenge,  
b) To reflect the voice and concerns of the public 

and its communities,  
c) To take the lead and own the scrutiny process 

and  
d) Make an impact on service delivery. 
 
Based on these four principles, a number of key 
functions make up the core business of scrutiny. 
Ideally, in setting its work programme, scrutiny 
should aim for a balance between these different 
roles, which include:- 
 
Holding the Executive (Cabinet as a whole and 
individual Cabinet Members) to account for the  
quality and appropriateness of its/their decisions; for 
the performance of the council against local and 
national standards; and for the improvement of 
individual services and departments.  
 
Policy review - this could be for a number of 
reasons including changes in legislation and 
government guidance or a local policy that is no 
longer fit for purpose or needs updating. 
 
Policy development - in addition to reviewing 
existing policies and services, scrutiny has a role in 
developing and making recommendations for new 
policy. This is often at the request of the executive or 
full council but may also be a response to any third 
party request or under scrutiny’s own initiative. 
 
External scrutiny - the Local Government Act 2000 
gives scrutiny committees the power to examine and 
make recommendations on matters which are not the 
responsibility of the local authority but which 
nevertheless affect the local authority’s area or its 
inhabitants 
 
The 8 Elements of Work Programme 
success 
 
1. Be realistic. Start small and add elements if time 

permits. 
2. Make sure scrutiny Councillors take the lead in 

identifying and managing the work programme. 
3. Identify some ‘quick wins’ to gain confidence in 

the early stages. 
4. Shift/filter/prioritise your work programme. 
5. Select a small number of issues which can be 

examined in depth. 
6. Make sure the issues are of interest to members, 

Page 57



relevant to the work of the authority – don’t 
avoid politically contentious issues. 

7. Work programmes that cover 6-12 month 
periods work best. 

8. Ensure that you monitor the results.  
 
Selection Criteria 
 
The following criteria could be used by the Scrutiny 
Committee and to support the evaluating and 
prioritising of each proposed topic for the Scrutiny 
Committee work programmes. This process is not 
set in stone. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Suggestions for scrutiny topics come 
from a variety of sources: 
 
• Suggestions made by Council Members and Co-

opted members  
• Suggestions made by senior management  
• Suggestions made by members of the public 
• Corporate performance reports  
• Suggestions made by partners and stakeholders  
• Suggestions made by Regulators 
• The Council's Corporate Plan / Corporate 

Priorities 
• The Cwm Taf PSB’s Plans and Strategies 
• Topics from budget monitoring reports  
• Issues from audit and inspection reports  
• Performance issues. 
• Inspectors’ and regulators’ concerns 

 
The Committee will also have considered Its areas of 
responsibilities / remit; the roles that scrutiny 
undertakes e.g. holding the Cabinet and decision-
makers to account, policy review and development, 
performance monitoring, and  external scrutiny. 

 

 
How to contact us. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Scrutiny Support Officer 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Democratic Services Department 
Civic Centre, Castle Street 
MERTHYR TYDFIL 
CF47 8AN 

 
 
01685 725464 

 

 
 
scrutiny@merthyr.gov.uk 

 

 

 
http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/council/councillors-and-
committees/scrutinycommittees/ 

 

Page 58

http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/council/councillors-and-committees/scrutinycommittees/
http://www.merthyr.gov.uk/council/councillors-and-committees/scrutinycommittees/


 

APPENDIX III 
 

 
Scrutiny Work Programme Proposal / Request Form 

 
 
Item(s) for ………………………………….………..Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 
 
Topic/Subject …………………………………………………………………………………… 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Q) Why has the item been suggested for the scrutiny work programme? 
�  Is the issue a priority area for the Council? 

� Is it a key issue for local people? 

� Will it be practicable to implement the outcomes of the scrutiny? 

� Are improvements for local people likely? 

� Does it examine a poor performing service? 

� Will it result in improvements to the way the Council operates? 

� Is it related to new Government guidance or legislation? 

� Other – please specify…………………………………………………………… 
 
Please provide further details……………………………………………………………………. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the committee? 
            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 

� To determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department 

� To determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose 

� To satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a major 
issue  

� To gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny   
investigation / review 

� To explore possible solutions to an issue 

� Other – please specify……………………………………………………………………….. 
 
Please provide further details……………………………………………………………………. 
 

Page 59



 

……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
 
Q) What outcome is being sought from the consideration of this item? 
� To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet regarding the 

proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

� Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 

� To receive an overview presentation. 

� To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy / strategy 

� To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the pressures facing 
each service. This also helps provide an overview of the policy frame work.  

� For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of the 
corporate plan / other plan / other strategy. 

� Improvement in service delivery 

� other – please specify…………………………………………………………… 
 
Please provide further details……………………………………………………………………. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range of 
witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and External 
partners – e.g. Police, Health Board etc 

 
Please provide further details……………………………………………………………………. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 60



 

Q) Does the committee need to ask for written representations? 
The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Department / Cabinet 
member / External Partner etc prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This will 
assist whoever is attending ensure that they have the information / answer ready 
for the meeting.  

 
Please provide further details……………………………………………………………………. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
Q) Which meeting format / venue would be most appropriate for the item and for 

the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 
Meetings do not have to be held in a formal committee room environment. You 
may wish to hold occasional meetings out in the community e.g. community 
centres, sports facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the 
formal setting intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see 
first hand what the committee is investigating / obtaining information on e.g. waste 
sites, regeneration projects etc. 

 
Please provide further details……………………………………………………………………. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
……………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 61



 

Examples of types of scrutiny (what is appropriate for each topic) 
 
1. Policy Review & Development – where the Committee contributes to the 

development of policy by scrutinising and making recommendations on policy 
proposals. Scrutiny Members may wish to be kept informed regarding new legislation, 
policy refreshing exercises and the outcomes of external assessments in order to 
provide recommendations to the Cabinet on policy.  

 
2. Pre-Decision Scrutiny - Where the Committee evaluates and comments upon policy 

proposals before they go to the Cabinet, giving the Cabinet the opportunity to know 
Scrutiny Members’ views prior to making their decision. Members may wish to keep 
informed of areas coming up on the agenda of Cabinet, in case they wish to pre-
scrutinise items. 

 
3. Performance Monitoring – where the Committee regularly analyses key performance 

data from the service areas within its remit in order to: highlight good performance; 
identify poor performance; examine trends over time; benchmark against other 
authorities; and examine the impact that initiatives and changes in resources have on 
performance and service delivery. By undertaking this role scrutiny may identify 
subjects that require further investigation 

 
4. Task and Finish – where the Committee examines a clearly defined topic using a 

planned approach over a set period of time, including: receiving evidence from 
Cabinet, officers and external witnesses; collating good practice; site visits where 
necessary; consulting stakeholders; and delivering a clear set of key findings and 
recommendations. 

 
5. Briefing Papers – where the Committee is receiving information on a topic to facilitate 

future scrutiny and analysis of that issue. 
 

6. Call-in – where the Committee is considering a recent Cabinet or officer decision that 
a non-executive Councillor has requested be re-considered, and which meets the 
Council’s criteria for Call-in as per the Constitution. 

 
7. In-depth topic reviews – Scrutiny Members may identify a topic they wish to review 

in depth. This enables Members to take time to consider evidence about the service 
area or organisation in question from various stakeholders, and present wide ranging 
recommendations aimed at service improvement. 

 
8. Overview - one of scrutiny’s main functions is to monitor the Council’s budget, service 

performance, and key decisions. The Scrutiny Committees also have an ‘overview’ 
remit and may have items on the agenda to brief Members about an area of work 
relevant to their terms of reference. Oversight of these areas is routine business and 
normally planned in advance. By undertaking this monitoring scrutiny may identify 
subjects that require further investigation.  

 
9. Short scrutinies - Scrutiny members can question senior officers and cabinet 

members about an issue in just one or two meetings. This approach enables scrutiny 
to address key, topical issues quickly. It is a useful way of holding to account or of 
highlighting quickly the work being done by the Council in relation to residents' areas 
of concern, or to have an update from a previous scrutiny to monitor progress. These 
short scrutinies are also a useful way for members to monitor and challenge a service 
or policy over a period of time and carry out broad, light touch, overview of services. 
The outcomes of these discussions are likely to be comments to the Cabinet Member, 
rather than detailed reports with a number of evidence-based recommendations. 

Page 62



  

 

GARETH CHAPMAN 
(Chief Executive) 

 

ELLIS COOPER 
(Deputy Chief Executive) 

 
 

SUE WALKER 
Chief Officer 
0 LEARNING0 

 

LISA CURTIS-JONES 
Chief Officer 

0 SOCIAL SERVICES0 

 

CHERYLLEE EVANS 
Chief Officer 

0NEIGHBOURHOOD SERVICES0 

 

ALYN OWEN 
Chief Officer   

0COMMUNITY REGENERATION0 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Chief Education Officer (Statutory Role) 
School Improvement (David Swallow) 
Inclusion & Wellbeing (Sarah Bowen)  
School Planning & Improvement (A Lewis) 
Additional Learning Needs (Dorothy Haines) 
Governor Services (Gary Winston) 
 

 

Director of Social Services 
Adults Social Services (Mark Anderton) 
Children’s Social Services (Annabelle Lloyd) 
Community Development (Ian Benbow) 
Safeguarding (Alex Beckham) 

 
Corporate Property & Estates (Lisa Emerson / Mick 
Campbell) 
Waste Management (Paul Davies) 
Highways & Engineering (Darren Chaffe / Kevin 
Davies) 
Fleet Management (Mick Campbell) 
Grounds Maintenance (Rob Barnett) 
Street Cleansing / Tidy Towns (Paul Jones) 
Environmental Cleansing and Enforcement (Paul 
Jones)  
Parks & Bereavement Services (Rob Barnett) 
Planning & Countryside (Judith Jones) 
 

 
Physical Regeneration (Chris Long) 
Economic Development (Chris Long) 
Tourism (Chris Long) 
Employment / Employability Services (Chris 
Long) 
European and External Funding (Chris 
Long) 
Destination Management Plan Co-
ordinator 
Public Protection & Housing (Steve Peters) 
 

Mark Thomas 
(Head of Corporate Services) 

 
Customer Contact Centre (G Edwards/C 
O’Neill) 
Service Support (G Edwards/Sian Thomas) 
Executive Support (G Edwards/Heidi Jones) 
CCTV / Lifeline (G Edwards /Sian Davies) 
Parking Administration, Enforcement & 
Strategy (G Edwards) 
CTPSB (Suzanne Davies) 
Benefits and Revenues (Benefits, C.Tax, 
Debtors, Cash Collection) (Mike Parry)  
Internal Audit (Gary Evans)  
Leisure Trust / Active Lifestyles / Sports, 
Leisure & Culture Development (John 
Sellwood) 
Partnerships (Suzanne Davies) 
 
 

Carys Kennedy 
(Head of Legal & Governance) 

 
Monitoring Officer 
Legal (Simon Jones) 
Democratic Services(Ann Taylor) 
Electoral Services (Ann Taylor) 
Register of Electors (Ann Taylor) 
Scrutiny Services (Howard Jones) 
Information Governance (Lisa Donnelly) 
Human Resources and Organisational 
Development (Fran Donnelly) 
 

Anthony Lewis 
(Head of School Planning and Improvement) 

 
Planning of  School Places and School 
Admissions (Helen Griffiths) 
21st Century Schools Programme (Anthony 
Lewis) 
School Organisation Planning (Anthony Lewis) 
Education Asset Management (Anthony Lewis) 
School Catering / Schools Buildings and 
Facilities Management / School Health & Safety 
/ School Cleaning / School Caretaking (Edwina 
Pickering) 
Local Management of Schools & School 
Resource (Craig Flynn) 
Education Management Information Systems 
(Capita One) (Emma Strand) 
 
 

Annabel Lloyd 
(Head of Children Social Services & Safeguarding) 

 

Wellbeing & Early Response (Joe Rhys-Jones)   
Services Supporting Permanence (Sarah Skuse)  
Merthyr Tydfil Family Centre & Contact (Pauline Lipian) 
Family Support (Kathryn O’Keefe) 
Intake (Gareth Powell) / Advocacy (Annabel Lloyd) 
Children with Disabilities (Jon Eyre)  
Early Intervention (Jon Eyre)  
Children Looked After (LAC) (Tammy Griffiths-Type)  
Fostering & Adoption (Angela Allen)  
LAC Education Support (LACES) (Jessica Jones) 
Children’s MASH) (Joe Rhys-Jones / Gareth Powell) 
Multi Intervention Assistance (MIA) (Gareth Kedward) 
Cwm Taf Youth Offending Service (Jason O’Brien RCT) 
Cwm Taf Integrated Family Support (Jay Goulding (RCT) 
 
 

 
Fran Donnelly 

 (Head of Human Resources and 
Organisational Development) 

(Reports to Carys Kennedy) 
 

HR Operations (P. Williams) 
HR Advice for Schools (Donna Perry) 
HR Admin (G Estabanez) 
Occupational Health (Alison Davies) 
Job Evaluation (Leanne Edwards) 
Health & Safety (A Dinham) 
Pensions (N Zeraschi) 
Payroll (David Jones) 
Trade Unions 

Judith Jones 
 (Head of Planning & Countryside) 

 
Development Control (Planning applications, 
Appeals & Enforcement) 
Building Control (Building Regulations & 
Dangerous Structures) 
Planning Policy & Implementation (Local 
Development Plan, Built Heritage Conservation, 
Landscape, Ecology & Biodiversity, G.I.S. 
 
“Countryside” relates to ecology, biodiversity and 
landscape which sit under the umbrella of 
implementation within the ‘Planning policy and 
Implementation section’, for which Chris O’Brien is 
the Group Leader. 

Steve Peters 
(Head of Public Protection & Housing) 

 
Housing Services (Strategic/Housing 
Solutions/ Homelessness) (J Pike). 
Housing Renewal Area (J Pike). 
Disabled Facility Grants (J Pike). 
Licensing (Paul Lewis).  
Trading Standards / Licensing (Paul Lewis). 
Environmental  Health (Sue Gow) 
Home to School / Subsidised Transport 
(Paul Lewis).  
Registry Service (Lorraine Evans). 
Community Safety (J Pike). 

Mark Anderton 
(Head of Adult Social Services) 

 

Supported People and Accom.(Lowri Morgan)   
Day Services (Rob Derrick) 
Initial Support Services (Angela Edevane)  
Community Occ. Therapy (Sonia Lloyd-Williams) 
Older People and Disability (Nicola Hughes) 
Community Mental Health (Alyson Jones) 
Psychiatry of Old Age (Alyson Jones) 
Advocacy (Mark Anderton) 
Complaints ((Jonathan Strong / Gaynor Lewis)  
Assessment & Charging (Jonathan Strong /Lesley-Anne 
Gallent) / Contracting  (Gareth Richards)  
Llysfaen (Chris Bartz) 
Ty Bargoed Newydd (Treharris) (Margaret Davidson) 
Ty Gurnos Newydd (Gurnos) (Nancy Harding) 
Adults MASH (Alex Beckham) 
Cwm Taf Social Care Workforce Development  (Jon Day 
RCT) 
 

 

Steve Jones 
(Head of Finance) 

 
Section 151 Officer 
Accountancy (Adele Lewis) 
Insurance (Huw Davies) 
Procurement (Paul Davies) 
Creditors (Huw Sims) 
Corporate Finance (Steve Jones) 
 

 
 

Ellis Cooper 
Other Departments:- 

 
Corporate Comm’s (Ceri Dinham) 
I.T. /  Print & Design (Richard Evans) 
Emergency Planning (Rob Gough) 
Business Change  (A Mogford) 
Risk Management / Equalities/Welsh 
Language (K O’Donovan) (Reports to A 
Mogford) 
Performance (Reports to A Mogford) 
 

(Reports direct to Ellis Cooper) 
 

Chris Hole 
  (Head of Community Wellbeing) 

 

Early Years & Flying Start (Sarah Davies) 
Youth & Youth Services (Samantha Morgan) 
Families First (James Watkins) 
Communities First (Vacant) 
Play (Chris Hole) / Integrated Children’s Centre (Nerys 
Jones) / Adult Community Learning (Jayne Powney) 
Parenting (Anthony Mee) 
NEET’s (Diane Jones) 
 
 

 
Learning and LAESCYP  

Scrutiny Committee 

 
Social Services  

Scrutiny Committee 

 
Neighbourhood Services, Planning  

& Countryside  
Scrutiny Committee 

 

 
Regeneration and Public 

Protection  
Scrutiny Committee 

(Also Crime & Disorder Committee) 

 
Governance, Performance, Business Change  

and Corporate Services  
Scrutiny Committee 

Cllr Lisa Mytton (Portfolio Member for 
Learning) 

Cllr David Hughes (Portfolio Member for Social 
Services) 

Cllr Howard Barrett (Portfolio Member for  
Neighbourhood Services, Planning  

& Countryside) 

 
 Cllr Geraint Thomas (Portfolio 

Member for  Regeneration and Public 
Protection) 

 

 Cllr Andrew Barry  
(Portfolio Member for “Governance and Corporate Services”) 

MTCBC Scrutiny Committee Remits 
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX IV 

P
age 63



APPENDIX IV 

The responsibilities of Scrutiny committees can be split into four main areas as 
detailed below. 

 

1. Holding Portfolio Holders to account for the services within their areas of 
responsibility 

The Cabinet system for local government means that the Leader and Portfolio 
Holders are directly accountable for all of the services provided by the Council. This 
means that Portfolio Holders are asked to present reports to Scrutiny and are held 
accountable for the Council's performance.  

Portfolio Holders are also held to account scrutiny through performance monitoring. 
Portfolio Holders are invited to present monitoring reports on targets in their portfolio. 
This gives the Committee a chance to take an overview of progress towards 
achieving the aims of the Council for the year and helps to show the clear 
relationship with the Portfolio Holder's responsibility for the service area. 

 

2. Contributing to the development and review of key Council policies and 
programmes 

Scrutiny plays a vital role in maintaining an overview of the Council's work and 
looking in depth at programmes of work or issues which either have particular 
significance for residents or have been highlighted as areas of concern. 

In order to undertake this work, the Committee can set up Informal Task & Finish 
Groups of committee members who work with officers in the relevant area to review 
the issue and report back to their parent scrutiny committee. If there are any 
recommendations these are then passed to Cabinet for consideration and, if agreed, 
implementation. 

Scrutiny can also ask for ad hoc reports on aspects of the Council's business 
throughout the year. 

Scrutiny can do the following in relation to policy development and review: 

a) Help the Council develop its budget and policy framework by looking at policy 
issues; 

b) Carry out research and consultation when looking into policy issues and 
possible options; 

c) Put in place mechanisms to encourage community participation and the 
development of policy options; 

d) Question Members of Cabinet, the Chief Executive / Deputy Chief Executive, 
Heads of Service and senior Officers about their views on issues and proposals 
affecting the County Borough; 

Page 64

jonesh1
Text Box

jonesh1_1
Text Box

jonesh1_2
Text Box
               APPENDIX V



e) Liaise with other external organisations operating in the area to make sure that 
working in partnership is in the interests of local people. 

 

3. Challenging decisions made by Cabinet or Portfolio Holders 

The Council's constitution allows scrutiny to 'call in' Cabinet decisions. When 'call in' 
has been used, Cabinet is not able to implement a decision until the matter has been 
considered by the Scrutiny.  

 

4. Reviewing the overall benefit to the public from services provided by the 
City Council and other organisations 

Scrutiny is able to scrutinise any matter affecting the County Borough or its 
residents. To help undertake this important role, it is able to scrutinise services 
provided by external organisations as well as those provided by the Council.  

Scrutiny can also review the Council's partnership working in relevant areas. They 
are able to look at all aspects of a partnership's work including the Council's role, 
performance management and monitoring work programmes. 

One difference with this external role is that Scrutiny cannot require a representative 
from those external organisations to come and give evidence. Rather, it can invite 
external people to attend to give evidence. 

Page 65



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 
 

 
Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet 

Member 
 

 (Other) 
Scrutiny Focus  

4th June 2018 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

16th July 2018 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

3rd September 2018 

   
Scrutiny and Challenge:- 

   
Scrutiny and Challenge:- 

   
Scrutiny and Challenge:- 

15th October 2018 

   
Scrutiny and Challenge:- 

   
Scrutiny and Challenge:- 

   
Scrutiny and Challenge:- 

26th November 2018 

   
Scrutiny and Challenge:- 

   
Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 

Date
s s

ub
jec

t to
 ag

ree
men

t a
t A

GM

P
age 66



Learning and LAESCYP Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and 
the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 
 
 

 
Additional items to consider for Work 

 
Date to be 
confirmed 
 

  

Date to be 
confirmed 

  

Date to be 
confirmed 

  

Date to be 
confirmed 

  

14th January 2019 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

4th March 2019 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

8th April 2019 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

  Scrutiny and Challenge:- 
 

Date
s s

ub
jec

t to
 ag

ree
men

t a
t A

GM

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Merthyr Secondary School Key Stage 4 Performance
	4 Estyn Inspection Areas
	5 Best Start To Life - Children and Young People are Equipped With The Skills They Need To Be Successful Learners and Confident Individuals
	6 Best Start To Life - Children Get The Best Start To Life
	7 Additional Learning Needs (ALN) - Review of Learning Resources Bases Across the Authority
	8 Developing a Work Programme for 2018/19
	Report - How to develop a Work Programme 2018 19
	To:  Committee Members,
	Developing a Work Programme for 2018/19
	4.10 An article will be in the next Contact magazine asking the public for suggestions for the work programmes. The Communications department will also put notifications out on Twitter and Facebook asking for work programme suggestions.
	4.11 There is a mechanism in place on the scrutiny pages of the Councils website to allow anyone to submit suggestions for the work programmes (online form).
	4.12 Should any members of the committee have suggestions to get the public more involved in the scrutiny process, please can you contact the scrutiny section accordingly.

	1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT
	2.0  RECOMMENDATION(S) that

	APPENDIX I Outcomes and characteristics for effective local government overview & scrutiny
	APPENDIX II Scrutiny Work Programme Prioritisation Process
	APPENDIX 2a A guide to Scrutiny Work Programmes
	APPENDIX III Scrutiny Work Programme Proposal Request Form
	APPENDIX IV MTCBC Scrutiny Committee Remits
	Appendix V The responsibilities of Scrutiny committees
	2 Learning & LAESCYP




